PLANNING, REGULATORY AND
LICENSING
5.00 PM WEDNESDAY, 16TH OCTOBER, 2019
COUNCIL CHAMBER
Please note that this meeting will be recorded for subsequent broadcast via the Authority’s
Internet Site.
The images and sound recording may also be used for training purposes within the Authority.
The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and using
the Public Seating Area, Members
of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and
sound recordings as outlined above.

This Agenda has been prepared by the
Democratic Services Department. Any member of the public requiring information should
contact the department on (01685 725284) or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.
Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found
on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Declarations of Interest
Members are reminded of their personal
responsibility to declare any personal and
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members
Code of Conduct

Note:
(a) Members are reminded that they must
identify the item number and subject matter
that their interest relates to and signify the
nature of the personal interest and
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting
as a consequence of the disclosure of a
prejudicial interest they must notify the
Chair when they leave
Exempt
In order for the following to be considered in private, it is suggested that the
public be excluded from the meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph/s (12 & 13 ) under
Part 4 of Schedule 12A Section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972

CLOSED SESSION
Licensing
3.

Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence
To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive

5 - 14

OPEN SESSION
Planning Applications - Recommendations under the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 and the Planning and Compensation Act
1991
4.

P/18/0321 - Land Between 3A and 4 Winifred
Street, Dowlais, Merthyr Tydfil
To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive

15 - 24

Information Reports
5.

P/18/0310 - Appeal Decision
To receive report of the Interim Chief Executive

25 - 32

6.

P/18/0330 - Appeal Decision
To receive report of the Interim Chief Executive

7.

Delegated Report
To receive report of the Interim Chief Executive

8.

33 - 42

43 - 46

Any Other Business Deemed Urgent by the Chair

COMPOSITION:

Councillors C Tovey (Chair)
M Colbran (Vice-Chair)
Councillors: J Amos, H Barrett, D Chaplin,
E Galsworthy, K Gibbs, C T Jones, G Lewis, J Thomas
and S Thomas
together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12, 13 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12, 13 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12, 13 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12, 13 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
DATE WRITTEN
REPORT AUTHOR
CASE OFFICER
COMMITTEE
COMMITTEE DATE

3rd October 2019
Judith Jones
Marlene Ferreira
Planning and Regulatory
16th October 2019

Application No.
P/18/0321

Date
4th October 2018

Determining Authority
MTCBC

Proposed Development

Location

Name & Address of
Applicant/Agent

Erect three storey property to
provide 1, two bedroom flat and
2, one bedroom flats, to include
retaining walls

Land Between 3A And 4
Winifred Street
Dowlais
Merthyr Tydfil

Mr M Williams
c/o Mr Paul Thomas
5 Amberton Place
Penydarren
Merthyr Tydfil
CF47 9HX

Councillor Declan Sammon and Councillor David Hughes have requested that this application be
reported to Planning Committee to consider the concerns and objections of local residents.
APPLICATION SITE
The application site relates to a vacant plot of land located within a residential street in the settlement
of Dowlais. The site is bound by the highway of Winifred Street to the front (east), a terraced dwelling

Page 15

to the northeast, a detached dwelling to the southwest and a lane to the rear (west). The land slopes
fairly steeply down from east (Winifred Street) to west (rear lane). Excavation and foundation works
have commenced on-site in respect of a development for the erection of a building to provide three
flats, for which planning permission was granted in 2015. The site however, has remained inactive
for some time following the submission of this application.
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
This application seeks retrospective planning permission to erect a detached three storey building,
which would comprise one, two bedroom flat and two, one bedroom flats. All three flats would be
accessed off Winifred Street, via a communal hallway. The two, one bedroom flats would be
provided at lower ground floor and at first floor, accessed by an internal staircase. The one, two
bedroom flat would be provided at ground floor level.
An almost identical scheme (planning permission P/15/0228) was granted on 11th November 2015.
This permission is still extant (i.e. the development can still be constructed). However, following
approval of the application and the subsequent submission of the discharge of condition application,
the Enforcement Section received a complaint in respect of the siting of the building and its distance
from the neighbouring boundaries. Following investigations, it was found that the building had not
been built in accordance with the approved plans. Notably, under the permitted scheme (P/15/0228)
the side gable elevation of the building was shown to be approximately 2.3 metres from the gable
end of 3A Winifred Street and approximately 2.4 metres from the gable end of 4, Winifred Street.
This current application shows that the side gable elevation of the building would be approximately
3.3 metres from the gable end of 3A Winifred Street and approximately 1 metre from the side gable
elevation of 4, Winifred Street. The building now proposed, would also be set back further into the
site from the front highway. The permitted scheme (P/15/0228) proposed a set back of between
1.15 metres (closest point) and 1.6 metres (furthest point) from the front highway. This proposal
shows that the property would be set back between 1.6 metres (closest point) and 2.8 metres
(furthest point) from the front highway. Thus, whilst the scale, design and finishes of the building are
identical to those approved under planning permission P/15/0228, the siting of the building on the
plot has changed. As such, the application subject of this report has been submitted in an attempt
to overcome this breach of planning control.
The building, given that the site slopes significantly from the front to the rear, would be two-storey
at the front and three storey at the rear. It would be 6.4 metres wide, 10.5 metres deep and have a
maximum ridge height of 9.2 metres when measured from the front footpath. It would be finished
with render elevations and brickwork quoin detailing, fibre cement roof tiles and UPVc windows. A
mono-pitched canopy, with a projection of 0.9 metres, is proposed over the front entrance.
This application also proposes two terraced patio areas at the rear of the property. The first patio
area (6.8 metres by 3 metres) would be at the same level as the lower ground floor flat and retained
by a 2.1 metre high wall. The second patio area (6.8 metres by 3.5 metres) would be approximately
2 metres lower than the first patio area and retained by a 2.4 metre high wall. A parking area for
three vehicles would be provided at the rear of the property, almost level with the rear lane. This
would be located approximately 2 metres lower than the second patio area. A 1.8 metre high timber
fence would be provided alongside the south-western side boundary of the property to enclose the
dwelling, patio areas and parking area. A 1.2 metre high timber panel is proposed alongside the
south-western side of the property, near the front of the site. A 1.2 metre high wall is proposed to
the front of the dwelling and would enclose a small front garden area. To the north-eastern side
boundary, steps would be introduced to provide access from the front to the rear of the plot.
PLANNING HISTORY
The following planning history is relevant to this application site:

Page 16

P/15/0228 – Erect three storey property containing one, two bedroom flat and two, one bedroom
flats with associated retaining works and parking area – Approved: 11th November
2015
P/05/0246 - Erection of two detached dwellings - Approved 20th June 2005
P/03/0388 - Erection of two detached dwellings with garages - Approved 24th September
2003
Other relevant planning history relating to the adjacent plot 3A, Winifred Street:
P/06/0515 - Erection of dwelling - Approved 28th November 2006
CONSULTATION
Engineering & Traffic Group Leader

No objections, subject to conditions.

Planning Division’s
Policy Group Leader

No objections.

Environmental Health Manager

No response.

The Coal Authority

No objection.

Welsh Water

No objection.

Wales and West Utilities

No response.

PUBLICITY
In accordance with the Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order
2012, letters were sent to nearby properties and two site notices were displayed within the vicinity
of the site. Four letters of representation have been received as a result of this publicity exercise
and the planning related concerns raised have been summarised below:


The building will be directly opposite 49, Winifred Street and due to the sun rising in the east,
it will shine onto the window of the apartments and shine directly into this property.



The apartments will not be in keeping with the character of existing properties and when
completed would cause loss of natural light to the side of the adjacent properties. It will
reduce air getting into windows on the side of the adjacent neighbouring properties and
prevent neighbouring occupiers from carrying out maintenance works. It would also overlook
the gardens of, and restrict access to, the rear of neighbouring properties;



The residential amenity of nearby properties would be affected as a result of more noise,
building work, additional people and light from the three apartments;



There would be additional vibration from additional cars, lorries, etc during construction works
and once the apartments have been occupied;

Page 17



Access for delivery lorries along the street is practically impossible, with cars parked on both
side of the road. This will make the construction of the apartments very difficult and cause
damage to the street and surrounding properties;



The lane to the rear of the property is not suitable for lorries. The rear lane is not wide enough
to accommodate a car and a lorry and is regularly used by walkers and children to reach the
playing fields. Unless the road is widened, emergency vehicles cannot access or attend any
incidents which happen to the rear of these properties;



The garages that are erected opposite the proposed parking area could not be used, since
cars would not be able to enter or exit the garage, resulting in additional parking in the street;



The use of the rear lane is very dangerous, since the road layout off Winifred Street is
awkward, not easily accessible and has a blind spot and telegraph pole when trying to leave
rear the lane;



The three apartments could add an additional 8-9 residents to the lower part of Winifred
Street;



Although parking requirements are less for apartments than what they would be for a house,
there is nowhere to park. These apartments could bring at least another 6 vehicles onto the
street. Although parking is shown to the rear, these parking spaces would never get used;



Smaller scale developments alone, such as the building of retaining walls, have resulted in
damage to the road;



The rain water currently flows into the vacant plot/application site and has caused movement
throughout the street including to walls and buildings;



Since the start of the build there have been significant issues, such as, threats being made
for residents to move their vehicles, the fence making a lot of noise when windy, the fence
collapsing and leaving the site open and a dangerous hazard for pedestrians;



The Dowlais area is already served by sufficient apartments. 22 brand new flats are almost
completed in St. Johns Church and there are other 1 bedroom flats in Victoria Street;



The proposal has had to be altered due to the problems which have occurred with the water
pipe. Welsh Water have questioned the design with regard to the direction of the water pipes.
The water pipe between 4 and 5, Winifred Street is damaged and building should not carry
on in this area;



The street is filled with families and a family house would be more suitable. Having flats has
the potential to increase anti-social noise and crime levels in the area;



The plans state that the dwelling would be built 0.8 metres from the boundary with 3A,
Winifred Street. This is a tight space which would not fit any scaffolding;

Page 18



3A, Winifred Street has also been damaged as a result of the development;



The building has not been constructed in accordance with the original permission;



Due to the steepness of the site, the property cannot be served with a level threshold to cater
for disabled persons as required under building regulations;



A sewer pipe runs across the application site and rises due to the steepness of the site and
has not been shown correctly on the plans. This would make the car parking area too steep
to have parked cars and would not comply with building regulations;



The plans show a storm drain running close to the boundary with 3A, Winifred Street and if a
soakaway is used, plans will need to change to leave a 2.5 metre gap from the walls and
fencing of 3A, Winifred Street.

POLICY CONTEXT
National Planning Policy
Planning Policy Wales (PPW), Edition 10, December 2018:
Paragraph 3.3 refers to good design and states that ‘…design is not just about the architecture of a
building but the relationship between all elements of the natural and built environment and between
people and places. To achieve sustainable development, design must go beyond aesthetics and
include the social, economic, environmental, cultural aspects of the development, including how
space is used, how buildings and the public realm support this use, as well as its construction,
operation, management, and its relationship with the surroundings area…’
Paragraph 3.9 refers to character and states that ‘…the special characteristics of an area should be
central to the design of a development. The layout, form, scale and visual appearance of a proposed
development and its relationship to its surroundings are important planning considerations. A clear
rationale behind the design decisions made, based on site and context analysis, a strong vision,
performance requirements and design principles, should be sought throughout the development
process and expressed, when appropriate, in a design and access statement…’
Paragraph 3.51 states that ‘…previously developed (also referred to as brownfield) land should,
wherever possible, be used in preference to greenfield sites where it is suitable for development.
In settlements, such land should generally be considered suitable for appropriate development
where its re-use will promote sustainability principles and any constraints can be overcome. It is
recognised, however, that not all previously developed land is suitable for development…’
Paragraphs 4.1.50, 4.1.51 and 4.1.52 discusses car parking provision and states that ‘…car parking
provision is a major influence on how people choose to travel and the pattern of development. Where
and how cars are parked can in turn be a major factor in the quality of a place…A design-led
approach to the provision of car parking should be taken, which ensures an appropriate level of car
parking is integrated in a way which does not dominate the development. Parking provision should
be informed by the local context, including public transport accessibility, urban design principles and
the objective of reducing reliance on the private car and supporting a modal shift to walking, cycling
and public transport. Planning authorities must support schemes which keep parking levels down,
especially off-street parking, when well designed. The needs of disabled people must be recognised
and adequate parking provided for them. Planning authorities must require good standards of car
parking design, which do not allow vehicles to dominate the street or inconvenience people walking

Page 19

and cycling. Car parking should be overlooked by surrounding properties, to provide natural
surveillance…’
- Technical Advice Notes (TAN’s)
TAN 12: Design, advises that the Welsh Government is strongly committed to achieving the delivery
of good design in the built and natural environment, which is fit for purpose and deliver environmental
sustainability, economic development and social inclusion at every scale throughout wales.
TAN 18: Transport, provides advice on how to integrate land use planning and transport and how
transport impacts should be assessed and mitigated.
Local Planning Policies
- The Adopted Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan (LDP) 2006-2021
Policy BW1 - Development strategy – Primary Growth Area.
Policy BW4 - Settlement boundaries / locational constraints.
Policy BW7 - Sustainable design and place making.
Policy BW8 - Development and the water environment.
Policy BW12 - Development proposals and transport.
Policy BW17 - Securing community infrastructure benefits.
Policy AS22 - Affordable housing contributions.
Policy TB11 - Access, parking and accessibility of local facilities.
- Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG):
SPG1 - Affordable Housing, March 2012
SPG2 – Planning Obligations, March 2012
SPG4 - Sustainable Design, July 2013
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
The main issues to consider under the assessment of this application relate to whether the proposed
flats would be acceptable in this location, and whether their scale, design and siting, would be
appropriate with regards to their impact upon the character and appearance of the area, residential
amenity, parking provision and highway safety.
Principle of Development
The application site lies within the settlement boundary as defined by the LDP Proposals Map. New
development within the settlement boundary is generally supported by LDP policies BW1 and BW4,
provided that the proposal is compatible with other relevant policies and material planning
considerations. The principle of development in this location is therefore considered acceptable.
Indeed, full planning permission (P/15/0228) has previously been granted in November 2015 for an
almost identical development.
Character and Appearance of the Area
Although the proposed siting of the building on the plot has slightly altered since the original
permission, it would continue to be located between two existing dwellings, 3A, Winifred Street and
4, Winifred Street. It would also be orientated to front Winifred Street. Its design, scale and external
materials are considered acceptable and appropriate to the local context. It is noted that the
neighbouring dwelling 3A, Winifred Street has a similar design. Additionally, the ridge height of the
building would also be stepped down from 4, Winifred Street, and therefore follows the topography

Page 20

of the land and ensures continuity in the arrangement of the properties when viewed within the street
scene. As such, it is considered that the proposal would be a sympathetic addition which would not
detract from the existing pattern of development or have an adverse impact on the character or
appearance of the area. Therefore, it would comply with Policy BW7 of the LDP.
Residential Amenity
The proposed building would be erected approximately 1 metre away from the gable end of 4,
Winifred Street (an end of terrace dwelling). This elevation has three window openings, two of which
have been blocked up. The building would result in a loss of light to the remaining window, however,
this appears to be a secondary window which is in a poor condition and currently covered with Ivy.
The loss of light to this window would therefore not be significant given its current condition. Some
loss of light would also be experienced to the top section of the rear garden of 4, Winifred Street,
during midday to early evening, as a result of the building being constructed approximately 3.6
metres beyond the rear elevation of this neighbouring property and the suns path. However, the
proposal would be set in 1 metre from the boundary with 4, Winifred Street and the projection beyond
its rear elevation would not be so great as to create a substantial loss of light. Indeed, such a
projection is already found on two storey rear extensions in Winifred Street. The ridge height of the
proposed building would also be lower than that of 4, Winifred Street, which would further limit any
loss of light or overbearing impact. It should also be noted that the existing wall and vegetation along
the boundary of 4, Winifred Street would partly screen the proposed development and further reduce
its impact when viewed from this neighbouring dwelling.
The proposed building would be constructed 3.3 metres from the gable end of 3A, Winifred Street
(a detached dwelling). This property has no window openings on the northern side elevation. As
such, the proposal would not result in any loss of light to any habitable rooms. The proposal would
also not extend past the rear elevation of number 3A. As such there would be no overbearing impact
upon this neighbouring property. A 1.8 metre high fence is proposed to be erected along the
boundary with this neighbouring property, which would also ensure that there is no significant
overlooking from the proposed patio areas.
It is acknowledged that the proposal would result in a degree of overlooking to the rear gardens of
3A and 4, Winifred Street, from the proposed windows in the rear elevation of the building and the
two-tier patio area to the rear of the property (particularly with regards to 4 Winifred Street, since no
new boundary fence has been proposed adjacent to this neighbouring dwelling). However, given
the pattern of development on this side of the street, where the gardens of the dwellings are at a
significantly lower level than the dwellings themselves, the gardens already experience a relatively
high degree of overlooking from the rear elevations of existing dwellings. As such, the impact of the
proposed development would be deemed acceptable within this context.
The proposal would also result in a degree of overlooking to the dwellings located opposite the
application site, since the front facing windows would front these properties. However, this impact
would be acceptable as it would represent a typical arrangement in the street and has already been
accepted when granting permission (P/06/0515) for the adjacent dwelling (3A, Winifred Street).
Furthermore, there is only one first floor window (bedroom) that would have any impact. Therefore,
given the combination of these factors, the harm caused by overlooking would not be significant.
Additionally, as the proposed building would be located over 11 metres from the front elevations of
these dwellings, it would not result in any unacceptable overbearing impact. Indeed, it would have
a lesser impact than the approved scheme (P/15/0228) where the building was proposed closer to
the front highway.
Having regard to the above, the proposal would not have an adverse impact on residential amenity
and as such complies with Policy BW7 of the LDP.
Parking Provision and Highway Safety

Page 21

It is acknowledged that the proposed development would result in an increased amount of traffic
using the surrounding highways. However, it is considered that the highway network serving the site
is adequate to accommodate any increase in traffic without resulting in a detrimental impact on
highway or pedestrian safety.
The proposed development includes provision for three off-street parking spaces which is
considered acceptable for the proposed flats. Additionally, on-street parking is not restricted in the
surrounding residential streets, which provides further opportunities for parking. The access to the
proposed parking area is also considered acceptable. It is noted that existing garages are currently
served by the same access.
Given these factors and having noted that the Engineering and Traffic Group Leader has not
objected to the development, it is not considered that the proposal would have a detrimental impact
on highway safety and as such complies with Policies BW12 and TB11 of the LDP.
Planning Obligations
Policies BW17 and AS22 of the LDP consider the requirements for planning obligations and
affordable housing respectively. Using the default values within the Three Dragon’s Toolkit, the
Town Planning Division’s Policy Group Leader has acknowledged that no planning obligation for the
provision of affordable housing or any other contributions have been sought, as this would likely
render the development financially unviable. Therefore the proposal complies with policies BW17
and AS22 of the LDP.
Responses to Representations
Some of the concerns raised by the objectors have been considered above. Other issues raised are
addressed below:


Reflection of sunlight from the buildings’ windows into neighbouring windows would be
limited and would not cause any significant harm;



Any maintenance works required to be carried out, whereby the owner may require the
permission of an adjoining owner, would be a civil matter between the parties involved
and as such not a planning issue;



The proposal would not affect the rear access of neighbouring properties;



The construction noise and traffic disruptions associated with the proposed development
would be temporary as with any new development. However a condition is recommended
in respect of construction times, in order to protect the amenities of nearby occupiers;



Any obstruction to a public highway or private property is a matter for the Police or
Highway Authority;



Any damage to neighbouring properties as a result of the construction works or any other
works would be a civil matter between the relevant parties;



The Council’s Engineering and Traffic Group Leader has requested that site investigations
are carried out to ascertain whether there are any land stability issues present on-site,
which if found, will require remediation prior to the continuation of the works;



Full details and calculations of retaining walls will be requested by condition;

Page 22



Issues regarding noise and disturbance from future occupiers is a matter for
Environmental Health and/or the Police;



Welsh Water has been consulted in respect of the application and have not raised any
concerns. Indeed, they have confirmed that a build over sewer agreement has been
signed and is now in place. They have also confirmed that on the basis that the surface
water is discharged via a soakaway, and no surface water or land drainage from the
development is connected to the public sewer, they have no objection to the proposal;



The changes to the plans in respect of the size of the plot and the dividing boundary
between the application site and 3A and 4, Winifred Street has not reduced the parking
area to the rear, which could still provide up to three vehicular parking spaces;



Any issues regarding access to land outside the applicants control would be a civil matter
between the parties involved;



The requirement to provide a level threshold into the building would be a consideration
for building regulations, however a level pathway is shown on the submitted plans, which
provides level access from Winifred Street to the front entrance of the building;

CONCLUSION
The proposed building would result in an acceptable form of development which would not detract
from the character or appearance of the area, the amenities of surrounding occupiers or highway
safety. The proposal is therefore in accordance with the relevant LDP Policies.
The duty to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, in
accordance with the sustainable development principle, under section 3 of the Well-Being of Future
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (“the WBFG Act”) has been taken into consideration when
determining this application. In reaching the following recommendation, the ways of working set out
at section 5 of the WBFG Act have been considered and thus the proposal is in accordance with the
sustainable development principle through its contribution towards one or more of the Welsh
Ministers well-being objectives set out as required by section 8 of the WBFG Act.
Accordingly, following recommendation is made:
RECOMMENDATION: BE APPROVED subject to the following CONDITIONS:
1.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans and
documents:
- Winifred 002, received 4th October 2019;
- Winifred 007, received 14th August 2019.
- Winifred 008, received 2nd October 2019;
Reason -To ensure compliance with the approved plans and clearly define the scope of the
permission.

2.

No further development should be undertaken until a site investigation is carried out in
accordance with a methodology first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The results of the site investigation shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority before any development begins. If any land instability issues are found
during the site investigation, a report specifying the measures to be taken to remediate the
site to render it suitable for the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. Remedial measures shall be carried out prior to the first

Page 23

beneficial use of the development in accordance with the approved details and retained in
perpetuity.
Reason - The site may be unstable and as such in the interests of safety remedial measures
may need to be carried out.
3.

If during the course of development, any unexpected land instability issues are found which
were not identified in the site investigation referred to in condition 2, additional measures for
their remediation in the form of a remediation scheme shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The remediation of the site shall incorporate the
approved additional measures which shall be retained for the period agreed in the
remediation scheme.
Reason - The site may be unstable and as such in the interests of safety remedial measures
may need to be carried out.

4.

Demolition or construction works shall not take place outside the hours of 8:00 to 18:00
Mondays to Fridays and 8:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or Public
Holidays.
Reason - To ensure that the noise emitted/activities are not a source of nuisance to
occupants of nearby properties in accordance with Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local
Development Plan.

5.

Within 6 months of this permission details, including structural calculations and facing
materials, of any retaining wall which exceed 1 metre in height shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The walls shall be completed in
accordance with the approved details before the development hereby approved is brought
into beneficial use.
Reason - In the interest of safety and visual amenity in accordance with Policy BW7 of the
Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan.

6.

The parking area to be provided at the rear of the property, shall be kept available for the
parking of motor vehicles at all times.
Reason - To ensure that cars are parked off the highway in the interests of highway safety
and to accord with Policies BW12 and TB11 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan

7.

No further development should be undertaken until details/samples of the materials to
be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the building are submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. Development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason - To ensure that the external appearance of the proposed development will be in
keeping with the character of the area and adjoining buildings in the interests of visual
amenity and to accord with Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan.

8.

The boundary treatments, as indicated on plan Winifred 007, received 14th August 2019,
shall be completed as approved before the occupation of the building.
Reason - To ensure that the new development will be visually attractive and boundaries
protected in the interests of amenity in accordance with Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil
Local Development Plan.

Page 24

Agenda Item 5
FOR INFORMATION – APPEAL DECISION
3rd October 2019
Judith Jones
David Cross
Planning and Regulatory
16th October 2019

DATE WRITTEN
REPORT AUTHOR
CASE OFFICER
COMMITTEE
COMMITTEE DATE
Application No.
P/18/0310

Date
21.09.2018

Determining Authority
MTCBC

Proposed Development

Location

Name & Address of
Applicant/Agent

Erection of 10 light industrial
units (use class B1) with
associated access road and
parking areas

Land To The South Of
Unit 7
Efi Industrial Estate
Merthyr Tydfil

Mr & Mrs Raynes
C/o George + Co
Hwyl Hub
1st Floor Woodfired Studios
62 High Street
Merthyr Tydfil
CF47 8DE

TYPE OF APPPEAL:
APPEAL REFERENCE NO.:
DATE DECISION RECEIVED:
DECISION:

AGAINST REFUSAL
APP/U6925/A/19/3229505
05.09.2019
DISMISSED

Page 25

Page 26

Page 27

Page 28

Page 29

Page 30

Page 31

Page 32

Agenda Item 6
FOR INFORMATION – APPEAL DECISION
3rd October 2019
Judith Jones
David Cross
Planning and Regulatory
16th October 2019

DATE WRITTEN
REPORT AUTHOR
CASE OFFICER
COMMITTEE
COMMITTEE DATE
Application No.
P/18/0330

Date
22.01.2019

Determining Authority
MTCBC

Proposed Development

Location

Name & Address of
Applicant/Agent

Construction of 10 dwellings
with associated retaining
walls, parking, access and
new footpath

Land At East Street
And Upper Union
Street
Dowlais
Merthyr Tydfil

Merthyr Tydfil Housing
Association
C/o DPP Planning
Sophia House
28 Cathedral Road
Cardiff
CF11 9LJ

TYPE OF APPPEAL:
APPEAL REFERENCE NO.:
DATE DECISION RECEIVED:
DECISION:

AGAINST REFUSAL
APP/U6925/A/19/3231012
01.10.2019
ALLOWED

Page 33

Page 34

Page 35

Page 36

Page 37

Page 38

Page 39

Page 40

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
FOR INFORMATION
DATE WRITTEN
REPORT AUTHOR
CASE OFFICER
COMMITTEE
COMMITTEE DATE

3rd October 2019
Judith Jones
Various
Planning and Regulatory
16th October 2019

DELEGATED DECISION REPORT LIST: 1st September – 30th September 2019
App No

Site

Proposal

Decision

Date of
Decision

P/19/0009 8 Pontmorlais
High Street
Merthyr Tydfil
CF47 8UB

Refurbishment, re-instatement,
conversion and extensions to provide a
restaurant/bar with micro brewery (A3
Use)

Full Approval

24/09/2019

P/19/0129 Land To The Rear Of
11 – 13 Gilfach-cynon
Twynyrodyn
Merthyr Tydfil

Construction of detached dwelling and
detached double garage with associated
landscape works

Full Approval

06/09/2019

P/19/0140 Capel Salem Kingdom
Hall
20 New Castle Street
Merthyr Tydfil
CF47 0BH

Conversion of building to 6 No. 1
Listed
bedroom flats, demolition of two storey Building
rear extension, construction of first floor Approval
extension, installation of cupola on the
roof, renovation of building exterior and
internal alterations

16/09/2019

P/19/0173 Trago Mills
Development Site
Swansea Road
Merthyr Tydfil

Change of use of land within the carpark Refusal
to accommodate 2 No. sales pitches

20/09/2019

12 Alexandra Terrace
P/19/0178 Twynyrodyn Road
Twynyrodyn
Merthyr Tydfil
CF47 0PU

Two storey rear extension

Full Approval

03/09/2019

P/19/0187 Land Adjoining Eirlys
Park Terrace
High Street
Bedlinog

Single dwelling with detached garage

Refusal

20/09/2019

Page 43

App No

Site

Proposal

Decision

Date of
Decision

P/19/0189 Bike Park Wales
Erection of proposed uplift building and Full Approval
Gethin Woodland Centre erection of 8 No. pole mounted CCTV on
A470 Pentrebach To
5 poles
Rhydycar Northbound
Abercanaid
Merthyr Tydfil
CF48 1YZ

10/09/2019

P/19/0201 The New Crown Inn
28 High Street
Merthyr Tydfil
CF47 8DP

Internal alterations and retention of
conservatory with 8 skylight windows

30/09/2019

P/19/0202 31 The Oaks
Quakers Yard
Treharris
CF46 5HQ

Demolition of existing double garage,
Full Approval
construction of two storey extension also
including single storey rear extension and
alterations to external wall finishes of
existing gables

03/09/2019

P/19/0203 86 High Street
Merthyr Tydfil
CF47 8UG

Change of use of part of ground floor
Full Approval
from D2 use class (Assembly and Leisure)
to B1 use class (Offices)

10/09/2019

P/19/0205 2 Westwood Drive
Treharris
CF46 5BL

Proposed two storey side extension

Full Approval

03/09/2019

P/19/0209 18 Heol Nant Caiach
Treharris
CF46 5RZ

Single storey extension to rear

Full Approval

03/09/2019

P/19/0210 Iona
St Tydfils Avenue
Twynyrodyn
Merthyr Tydfil
CF47 0NW

Change of use of land to the front/side of Full Approval
property to provide an extended garden
and provision of 2 on-site parking spaces.
Erect new boundary treatments to the
front, side and rear

24/09/2019

P/19/0212 19 Ash Crescent
Gurnos
Merthyr Tydfil
CF47 9PG

New porch to front and new windows in
front elevation

03/09/2019

Page 44

Listed
Building
Approval

Full Approval

App No

Site

Detached garage with associated retaining
works

Full Approval

Date of
Decision
09/09/2019

P/19/0214 1 Fox Street
Treharris
CF46 5HE

Change of use from offices (B1 use class) to
retail shop (A1 use class)

Full Approval

27/09/2019

P/19/0246 Esgair Crynwyr
Pantanas
Treharris
CF46 5BN

Fell Monkey Puzzle and various works to 4
Tree Works
Beech, 4 Oak, 2 Sycamore and Cherry Laurel Approval
trees (Woodland TPO No. 20 - Cwmbargoed)

P/19/0213 Penygarn
Edwards Terrace
Quakers Yard
Treharris
CF46 5DA

Proposal

Page 45

Decision

23/09/2019

This page is intentionally left blank

